Answers to “Solicitation for Health Reform Proposals” Questions 
5th Proposal Committee
Monday, August 27
Unanswered questions and parking lot issues in bold

Future steps in italics
Question #1: Will the proposal “expand health care coverage?” How?

a) Require legal residents of Colorado to have health insurance

i) Require legal residents of Colorado and the US to have health insurance
ii) Enforce requirement by:
(1) Requesting  proof of coverage at school enrollment 
(2) Requesting proof of coverage at Department of Motor Vehicles
(3) Assessing penalty at tax filing without proof of coverage, equal to the cost of a year’s coverage
(4) Possibly creating central registry of uninsured

(5) Default enrolling the uninsured into a coverage program 
iii) Create affordability exception

(1) Committee needs to develop the affordability exception

b) Employer role

i) Do not require employers to provide coverage to their employees
ii) Require employers who do not offer coverage to create 125 plans for their workers
c) Reform the individual and small group markets

i) Require guarantee issue of the standard benefit plans in the individual and small group markets (standard benefit plans described under Questions #4 and #5)
ii) Require modified community rating for all plans sold in the individual and small group markets

(1) Allow rating based on age and geography
(2) Committee is uncertain as to whether or not to allow gender rating in the individual market 
(3) Committee is uncertain whether or not healthy discounts should be allowed and how these would work 
iii) Committee is unsure as to whether or not individual and small group markets should be merged. Issues to be considered include:

(1) What would happen to the benefit mandates in the small group market? Would these be applied to policies sold to individuals? 
iv) Committee asked Elisabeth Arenales to communicate these questions to the Insurance Technical Advisory Group for feedback
v) Eliminate CoverColorado (current revenues used to fund CoverColorado could be used to fund other programs created under this proposal)
vi) Should health plans be required to collect copayments and deductibles instead of providers?
d) Possibly create an Insurance Exchange

i) Allow Insurance Exchange to:

(1) Administer subsidies

(2) Determine benefit packages

(3) Provide more portable coverage

(4) Provide consumer information

ii) Committee is concerned about the following issues:

(1) How rating would occur in the Exchange

(2) How adverse selection would be prevented in the Exchange

(3) How premiums would be set in the Exchange
(4) Should exchange be allowed to competitively bid insurance contracts
iii) Other possible activities of the Exchange include:

(1) Bulk purchasing

(2) Claims management

(3) Reinsurance

(4) Aggregating clinical data
(5) Purchasing for Medicaid, CHP+, subsidized groups, and non-subsidized groups
iv) Committee formed ad hoc group to explore issues around creating an Insurance Exchange
e) Expand Medicaid and CHP+ to cover all legal residents of Colorado up to 200% of FPL, except childless adults
i) Expand Medicaid/CHP+ for parents to 200% of FPL (Children and pregnant women are covered up to 200% FPL in the current program)
f) Provide subsidies for purchase of private insurance for all uninsured legal residents not eligible for Medicaid or CHP+ up to 400% FPL
i) The Committee recommends that Lewin model the following three subsidy schedules:
(1) Schedule A
(a) Up to 250% FPL—100% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(b) Between 251% and 300% FPL—90% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(c) 301% to 400%  FPL—80% subsidy of minimum benefit package
(2) Schedule B

(a) Up to 250% FPL—100% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(b) 251%FPL-300% FPL—80% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(c) 301% to 400%  FPL—50% subsidy of minimum benefit package
(3) Schedule C
(a) Up to 200% FPL—100% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(b) 201% FPL-250% FPL—80% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(c) 251%FPL-300% FPL—50% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(d) 301% to 400%  FPL—20% subsidy of minimum benefit package
ii) Do not require a waiting period for subsidies
iii) Allow subsidies to be used to purchase coverage through:

(1) “the central program” (not yet defined; possibly the Insurance Exchange) or
(2) An employer. Subsidy recipients who are offered coverage by their employer must use their subsidy to purchase their employer’s coverage; unless their employer’s coverage is more expensive to them than coverage provided through the “central program.”
g) Do not create additional state tax credits for the purchase of health insurance
h) Create an optional government portable plan
i) Enroll individuals on a voluntary basis
ii) Fund coverage through an income tax surcharge

iii) Do not require employer participation, but require employers to take whatever contribution they would normally contribute and send it on behalf of an enrollee to the voluntary program

iv) Provide benefits similar to CHP+. Do not provide a choice of plans. Provide one comprehensive plan, similar to Medicare.

v) Like Medicare, do not involve insurance companies. An insurance company might be hired to handle claims.

vi) Require an initial volume of enrollment prior to program implementation. (30,000,100,000?)

vii) Control entry on the basis of risk, at least initially. Possibly use a waiting list in order to ensure a normal distribution of risk.

viii) Possibly combine the program with Medicaid/CHP+.
ix) Committee formed an ad hoc group to further develop this option
Question #2: How will outreach and enrollment be conducted?
a) Improve outreach and enrollment in Medicaid/CHP+
i) Automatically enroll in Medicaid and CHP+ through coordination with programs like Free and Reduced School Lunch

ii) Provide one-year of guaranteed eligibility for Medicaid enrollees

iii) Provide presumptive eligibility for parents on Medicaid (child PE already exists)
iv) Create single state-level entity for determining Medicaid/CHP+ eligibility—instead of current multiple county-level systems
v) Increase number of provider offices that can conduct eligibility determination

vi) Improve navigation of Medicaid eligibility

vii) Create expedited eligibility
b) Conduct joint outreach through schools, employers, providers, social security offices, an insurance exchange, community-based educational programs, and/or a newly created state-level eligibility system for Medicaid/CHP+, the new subsidy program and the insurance mandate. Use tax system to notify people of eligibility. 
c) Will the proposal use automatic or default enrollment? How will it work? 
Question #3: How will the proposal define “resident”?

a) Legal residents of Colorado and the US will be subject to the mandate and will be eligible for subsidies

Question #4: How will the proposal assure that benefits are adequate, have appropriate limitations, and address distinct populations?

Question #5: Identify an existing Colorado benefit package that is similar to the one that will be offered in the proposal
a) Create three to four standard benefit plans that must be offered by all carriers in all health insurance markets in Colorado

i) Each plan will cost approximately $170 per month per person

ii) Possible types of benefit plans that could be offered include:

(a) SEIU—first dollar coverage with annual benefit cap of $50,000

(b) CASHU—PPO with 20% coinsurance
(c) HSA; purchaser must provide proof that they have fully-funded the HAS; use lower-end deductible, e.g. not $10,000 deductible
iii) Create process for annual development of basic benefit plans; create multi-stakeholder group to conduct process and insulate process from political process
iv) Committee will suggest parameters for benefits coverage

b) To satisfy the insurance mandate, require purchase of coverage that includes, at a minimum, the benefits of any one of the standard benefit plans (similar to minimum coverages in auto insurance)
i) Issue for Commission: should minimum for satisfying mandate be covered benefits or actuarial value?

ii) For modeling purposes, Lewin will model CASHU benefit package with elimination of copayments for preventive care and chronic care management
c) Require those who receive subsidy to purchase one of the standard benefit plans, except those who purchase employer plans
i) Require subsidy recipients to purchase one of the three to four standard benefit plans
ii) Allow subsidy recipients to purchase additional coverage with their own dollars

iii) Reduce copayments and deductibles for subsidy recipients 
iv) Committee formed an ad hoc group to further explore ideas for spreading risk for the subsidized population 
d) Medicaid/CHP+ benefits

i) Provide newly covered parents and childless adults the same benefit package as children covered at the equivalent income level—Medicaid to 133% FPL and CHP+ to 200%
ii) Expand Medicaid benefits to include:

(1) Dental coverage for adults

(2) Medically-necessary over-the-counter medical products
(a) Committee needs to define this benefit
(3) Medical home services, including care management and care coordination
(4) Eliminate copayments for preventive and chronic care management
(5) Cover telemedicine for Medicaid recipients in geographically underserved areas
(6) Should alternative treatments and chiropractic care be added? 

iii) Expand CHP+ coverage to include wrap-around coverage as developed for the Family Care proposal
(1) Eliminate co payments for preventive care and chronic care management
(2) Wrap-around for CHP+ benefits will bring CHP+ benefits up to Medicaid level
e) Voluntary single-payer benefits

i) Similar to CHP+
f) Should Colorado employers be allowed to offer 24 hour coverage?

Question #6: If applicable, what will enrollee and/or employer premium-sharing requirements be?

a) The Committee recommends that Lewin model the following three subsidy schedules:

i) Schedule A
(1) Up to 250% FPL—100% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(2) Between 251% and 300% FPL—90% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(3) 301% to 400%  FPL—80% subsidy of minimum benefit package
ii) Schedule B

(1) Up to 250% FPL—100% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(2) 251%FPL-300% FPL—80% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(3) 301% to 400%  FPL—50% subsidy of minimum benefit package
iii) Schedule C
(1) Up to 200% FPL—100% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(2) 201% FPL-250% FPL—80% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(3) 251%FPL-300% FPL—50% subsidy of minimum benefit package

(4) 301% to 400%  FPL—20% subsidy of minimum benefit package
Question #7: How will co-payments and other cost-sharing be structured?

a) Medicaid and CHP+ copayments will be the same as the existing benefit packages except elimination of copayments for preventive care and chronic care management
Question #8: Does this proposal expand access? If so, please explain.

a) Improve access to care for rural residents

i) Committee has asked Rural Task Force for its ideas regarding increasing access to care for Colorado residents living in rural areas of the state
b) Improve access to care for Medicaid recipients
i) Use integrated delivery systems

(1) Pay actuarially sound rates to integrated delivery systems participating in Colorado Medicaid

(2) Enroll 50% of Medicaid recipients in integrated delivery systems

ii) Improve provider participation in Medicaid FFS

(1) Reimburse Medicaid providers at 75% of Medicare, with eventual goal of 100% of Medicare; possibly vary rates by specialty
(2) Provide Colorado Children’s Health Access Program (CCHAP) supports in minimum-sized practices

iii) Cover services that improve access to care

(1) Cover telemedicine as a Medicaid benefit in geographically underserved areas

(2) Cover medical home services for all Medicaid recipients

c) Improve access to care for all Colorado residents
i) Expand scope of practice for providers such as licensed practical nurses and midwives

ii) Provide 24 hour/7 day a week nurse line for all Colorado residents either through health plans or state; health plans that do not provide will fund state nurse line
Question #9: How will the program affect safety net providers?

a) Require health plans in participating in Medicaid/CHP+ and subsidized insurance program to make good faith efforts to contract with safety  net providers

b) Retain existing Medicaid reimbursement and funding for safety net providers

Question #10: How will undocumented residents receive health care?

Question #11: Please describe any provisions for assuring that individuals maintain access to coverage even as life circumstances (e.g. employment, public program eligibility) and health status change.
 (Although the Committee did not specifically address portability, the following decisions affecting portability have been made thus far :)
a) Medicaid/CHP+ policies
i) Provide 12 months continuous eligibility in Medicaid 
b) Subsidy program policies

i) Allow individuals to use subsidy for employer-sponsored insurance 
c) Insurance market rules

i) Require guarantee issue of Standard Benefit Plans 

ii) Require modified community rating in individual and small group market

d) Single payer policies

i) Provide voluntary single payer program that ensures portability, regardless of health status, employment or income change

Local solutions

a) Remove barriers and create incentives for communities with good local solutions 

Questions #12: Does your proposal decrease or contain health care costs? How?

Question #13: To what extent does your proposal use incentives for providers, consumers, plans or others to reward behavior that  minimizes costs and maximizes access and quality in the health care services? Please explain.

Question #14: Does this proposal address transparency of costs and quality? If so, please explain.

Question #15: How would your proposal impact administrative costs?
(Preliminary answers follow; Committee will address cost again in September)
· Streamline claims forms
· Increase transparency of cost and quality
· Better align incentives for  what hospitals and doctors do and are reimbursed for
· Improve discharge planning and use of hospital alternatives such as home health and  hospice care
· Create shared case managers for primary care doctors
Question #16: How will quality be defined, measured, and improved?

Question #17: How, if at all, will quality of care be improved (e.g. using methods such as applying evidence to medicine, using information technology, improving provider training, aligning provider payment with outcomes, and  improving cultural competency including ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity, education, and rural areas, etc.?) 
(Preliminary answers follow; Committee will address quality again in September)

· Ensure a medical home for all Colorado residents, including Medicaid recipients

· Increase use of Medicaid home-based and consumer-directed care 

· Health information technology

· Create a statewide health information network for cost and quality

· Create electronic health records and personal health records for every Coloradoan with protections for privacy

· Support and incentivize use of health information technology through tax credits, uniform standards, and data sharing

· Build on national, evidence-based
 guidelines and performance measures and require uniform application across all payers

· Collect data on quality and efficiency, combine data from multiple sources in a central repository, and report data to various stakeholders

· Create multi-stakeholder group to develop and implement cost and quality initiatives

Question #20: How does your proposal address wellness and prevention?

(Preliminary answers follow; Committee will address prevention and wellness again in September)

· Provide first dollar coverage of primary and secondary prevention services

· Increase community-based prevention and health education
� Evidence-based medicine is defined as “A set of principles and methods intended to ensure that, to the greatest extent possible, population-based policies and individual medical decisions are consistent with the evidence of effectiveness and benefit.”
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